
 

 

UFV Alumni Association 
Annual General Meeting 

Wednesday, May 26, 2021 
Airmeet, 7:00pm 

 

 
 

 

1. Call to Order Derrick Uittenbosch, Chair 

2. Approval of the Agenda Derrick Uittenbosch, Chair 

3. Approval of the minutes from the 2020 
AGM 

Derrick Uittenbosch, Chair 

4. Auditor Waiver Derek Ward-Hall, Associate Vice-Chair 

5. Financial Statements 2020-21 
 

Diane St-Denis, Manager, Alumni Relations 
and Staff Liaison to the UFV Alumni 
Association 

6. Report from the Advancement & Alumni 
Relations Department 

Anita Nielsen, Executive Director, UFV 
Advancement & Alumni Relations 

7. Report from the Alumni Relations Office 
Diane St-Denis, Manager, Alumni Relations 
and Staff Liaison to the UFV Alumni 
Association 

8. Report from the Chair Derrick Uittenbosch, Chair 

9. Elections Marc Bergen, Chair, Governance 

10. Special Resolution to approve Bylaw 
Changes 

Marc Bergen, Chair, Governance 

11. New Business Derrick Uittenbosch, Chair 

12. Questions from the Floor  

13. Acknowledgement of outgoing Board 
Members 

Derrick Uittenbosch, Chair 

14.  Adjournment Derrick Uittenbosch, Chair 

 



 
UFV Alumni Association  

Annual General Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, Sept 23, 2020 

7:00pm – 8:15pm 
Via Zoom 

 
 

Present: Derek Froese, Chair; Derrick Uittenbosch, Vice-Chair; Ali Siemens, Chair Emerita; 
Keenan Beavis, Director-at-Large; Marc Bergen; Kelly Blakeborough, Director-at-Large; Seamus 
Heffernan, Director-at-Large; Emily Henry, Director-at-Large; Vessal Jaberi, Director-at-Large; 
Joe Johnson, Director-at-Large; Auriel Niven, Associate Vice-Chair; Kevin Renso, Director-at-
Large; Nik Venema, Chair Emeritus; Isaac Veeneman, Director-at-Large; Ashley Ward-Hall, 
Director-at-Large; Derek Ward-Hall, Director-at-Large; Whitney Fordham, Manager, Alumni 
Relations; Leona Oakman, Coordinator, Alumni Relations (recording); John Pankratz, Chair, UFV 
Board of Governors; Nav Bains, Chair Emeritus; Udit Ahuja; Amy Benton; Victoria Bolan; Robert 
Cachat; Lynn Cartan; John Christensen; Gregory Costello; Christina Forcier; Kathleen Francis; 
Jonathan Friesen; Paula Funk; Kaustubh Jaju; Jason Ho; Joshua Ho; Tamar Requeno Arcia; 
Kathryn Thompson; Jennifer Trithardt-Tufts; Kristi Viher; Sandy Watson 

 
Regrets: Aman Khinda, Director-at-Large 
 
Guests: Tony Dhaliwal; Karis Duncalfe; Ted Friesen; Alvira Froese; Peter Geller, Vice Provost and 
Associate Vice President Academic; Joanne MacLean, President, UFV; Deanna McIntyre, Donor 
Relations Manager; Anita Nielsen, Executive Director, Advancement and Alumni Relations; Craig 
Toews, VP External; Al Wiseman, UFV Secretary 

 
 

1. Call to Order (Derek Froese, Chair) 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:19pm by Mr. Derek Froese, Chair. 

 
2. Territorial Acknowledgement (Kihci Têpakohp Iskotêw Iskwêw, Emily Henry, Equity, 

Diversity & Inclusion Officer) 
 

 Ms. Henry recognized and acknowledged the traditional unceded Stó:lō territory upon 
which many of the participants of this meeting are situated, and offered further 
explanation of the importance and significance of the land acknowledgement as: 
• a powerful expression of reconciliation, recognizing the Indigenous peoples’ resiliency, 

unique culture, language and beliefs 
• a social statement that reflects an intention of unification, to work toward equality of 

both indigenous and non-indigenous peoples alike 
• an intentional declaration made in community gathering such as this, or through 

written declaration, that speaker or writer will take further steps to educate 
themselves about indigenous peoples’ history 

• a declaration recognizing that the land has neither been surrendered or acquired by 
the Crown  



2020 UFV Alumni Association AGM 
 

2 

 
 

3. Approval of Agenda (Derek Froese, Chair) 
 
Motion: Be it resolved that we adopt the UFV Alumni Association 2020 AGM Agenda as 
discussed 

NIK VENEMA / DEREK WARD-HALL 
CARRIED 

 
4. Approval of Minutes from the 2019 AGM (Derek Froese, Chair) 

 
Motion: Be it resolved that we approve the UFV Alumni Association 2019 AGM Minutes as 
discussed 

 JONATHAN FRIESEN / KATHRYN THOMPSON  
 CARRIED 
 
5. Auditor Waiver (Derrick Uittenbosch, Vice Chair) 

 
Mr. Uittenbosch put forward the motion to waive the option to appoint an auditor for the 
2019/2020 Financial Statements, as the Association does not require an auditor to be 
appointed according to its bylaws. 
 
Motion: Be it resolved that we waive the audit of the UFV Alumni Association's 2019-20 
Financial Statements.  

DERRICK UITTENBOSCH / KELLY BLAKEBOURGH 
CARRIED 

 
6. Financial Statements 2019/2020 (Whitney Fordham, Manager, Alumni Relations) 

 
Ms. Fordham presented the 2019/20 financial statements from the AGM meeting package.  
 
Motion: Be it resolved that the UFV Alumni Association approve the UFV Alumni 
Association 2019-20 Financial Statements as discussed. 

WHITNEY FORDHAM / ISAAC VEENEMAN 
CARRIED 

 
7. Report from the Alumni Relations Office (Whitney Fordham, Manager, Alumni Relations) 

 
Ms. Fordham reported on the office’s continued support of the Alumni Association’s 
strategic plan.  
 
Funds were raised and revenues increased through the many benefits and affinity 
programs.  
 
An RFP process launched to find a partner to offer life and health insurance discounts to 
our alumni, with TD Life & Health being chosen as the successful partner. This program is 



2020 UFV Alumni Association AGM 
 

3 

slated to launch this fall and is poised to provide a very significant revenue stream for the 
Alumni Association for years to come. 
 
Alumni database now has over 43,000 records, with 2,000 new alumni being added 
annually.  
 
Alumni have been communicated with through the Alumni eNewsletter 5 times this past 
year. In addition to the Alumni eNewsletter, a new newsletter for UFV donors, friends and 
alumni was launched and sent on a quarterly basis.  
 
The Alumni Association’s presence on Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram has been steadily 
growing. 
 
The 5th Annual UFV Alumni Open Golf Tournament in September 2019 saw over 100 
golfers, with a record $65,000 raised for the Alumni Changing Lives Leadership and Bursary 
endowments.  
 
The 2019 Distinguished and Young Distinguished Alumni awards were presented to Sonya 
Sangster (BBA ’06) and Jesse Wegenast (BA ’12). Short videos featuring our distinguished 
alumni award winners were produced for the first time, which garnered numerous shares 
and likes on social media. These can be found on the UFV Alumni Association’s YouTube 
page.  
 
Although in-person events came to an abrupt halt in early March 2020, the office still 
managed to orchestrate and participate in over 20 alumni related events in various 
capacities on behalf of the Association which are listed in the Annual Board Report. 
 
The pandemic has presented a unique opportunity to shift our engagement strategy 
towards a digital first strategy, and we have already launched several virtual engagement 
strategies: 
• UFV Connect, an online directory of UFV alumni-owned businesses, to connect and 

promote businesses among the alumni population and the UFV community 
• An online book club, where alumni can connect with fellow alumni as they read and 

discuss various book genres such as lifelong learning, personal growth, novels and 
other topics  

The alumni relations office looks forward to continuing to work towards the completion of 
the Association’s 2018-2021 strategic plan, and the next strategic plan to come. 

 
8. Report from the department of Advancement and Alumni Relations (Anita Nielsen, 

Executive Director, Advancement and Alumni Relations) 
 
Ms. Nielsen presented a look at the plans for 2021 and beyond: 
• In the lead up to UFV’s 50th anniversary in 2024, the department has developed a 5-

year strategic plan founded on 4 pillars of activity: Inspire, Involve, Invest, and 
Infrastructure. 



2020 UFV Alumni Association AGM 
 

4 

• Alumni Relations priorities for 2021 include: 
o Transitioning to digital engagement with the alumni community, hastened by the 

impact of the COVID crisis on the regular in-person event schedule. Focus on 
creating opportunities for all alumni to reconnect with UFV and fellow alumni  

o Expansion of the UFV Connect platform, building on the success of the Alumni 
Business Directory, launched this summer. UFV Connect will host a wide range of 
opportunities for alumni including mentorship, career advice, job searches, faculty 
or topic specific groups, virtual event registration and many other features. Joining 
will be as simple as downloading your LinkedIn profile 

o Plans to tackle alumni records of old, stored on microfiche, for a complete 
database of more than 43,000 alumni 

o Continue to profile and celebrate alumni in all communications, including 
Skookum magazine, social media channels, newsletters, media stories and 
community updates 

• The UFV Legacy Project, in partnership with Alumni Association and as part of UFV’s 
Campus Masterplan, will see the creation of an inviting main entrance to the university 
with beautiful landscaping, featuring engraved paving stones. Alumni will have the 
opportunity to purchase a paving stone with a name of their choice engraved on it, 
creating a lasting legacy. Funds raised from this initiative will support student awards 
and other funding priorities of the Alumni Association  

• There has been outstanding community support for our students during the COVID 
crisis with over $150,000 being donated to the Student Emergency Fund and Food 
Bank. This will continue to be a fundraising priority for the remainder of 2020. All 
alumni are encouraged to contribute what they can to help future alumni access 
learning for this difficult time 

• The Alumni Association is well on its way to reaching its fundraising goals: 
o  Changing Lives Building Community bursary endowment reached $202,389, 

against goal of $300,000 
o AA Leadership Award Endowment has surpassed its goal of $150,000, reaching 

$154, 049 
o New Outstanding Alumni Award Endowment has surpassed its goal of $25,000, 

raising, $25,232 
• The Alumni Relations team was thanked for their tremendous work in putting on the 

association’s first ever virtual AGM, and special recognition was given to Whitney 
Fordham, Manager Alumni Relations, for her tireless and excellent work, as she 
prepares to embark on an 18-month maternity leave 

 
9. Report from the Chair (Derek Froese, Chair) 

 
Mr. Froese presented highlights of the work of the board over the last year: 
• The introduction of regular Governance Moments to each board meeting, under the 

leadership of Ali Siemens, has helped the board transition from an operationally 



2020 UFV Alumni Association AGM 
 

5 

focused board to a more governance-focused approach, with office staff managing 
more of the operational aspects  

• Blood Donation Clinics have continued to take place on campus – many thanks to all 
alumni who continue to donate to this worthy cause 

• DAA and YDAA winners, Sonya Sangster (BBA ‘06) and Jesse Wegenast (BA ’12), were 
recognized for their extensive achievements and contributions. The board is incredibly 
proud of the accomplishments of UFV alumni 

• Following consultation with the entire board under the leadership of Ali Siemens, an 
Equity, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) policy was established at board level, with Ms. 
Emily Henry being appointed to the position of EDI Officer  

• With the COVID crisis hitting at the very end of the last fiscal year, the board directors 
were recognized and thanked for their combined donation of $1,200 to the Student 
Emergency Fund  

• The Alumni Relations Office staff was thanked for its support of the board throughout 
the last year 

• Switching focus to the current fiscal year, changes have so far included four new 
directors being welcomed to the board, together with the board’s first virtual AGM 

• The Association has been operating under a modified budget due to reduced revenue 
as a result of the COVID crisis. Despite this, it has been able to maintain many events 
and services with a limited draw on reserves 

• The Kindness Matters award was developed and launched by the Outreach Committee 
to recognize acts of kindness and generosity among students and alumni during the 
COVID crisis 

• It is hoped that next year’s AGM will take place in June, near the start of the new fiscal 
year, in order to reduce the delay in discussing the previous fiscal year 

• All alumni were thanked for their attendance at this AGM and encouraged to consider 
getting more involved, whether through volunteering, committee service or by 
applying to serve on the board. Applications are welcome from all across the alumni 
community 

 
10. Bylaw Changes and  Review (Derrick Uittenbosch, Vice-Chair) 

 
Mr. Uittenbosch introduced and summarized the proposed changes to the bylaws.  
 
Motion: Be it resolved that we adopt the UFVAA 2020 Proposed Bylaws as our bylaws, as 
discussed. 

DERRICK UITTENBOSCH / MARC BERGEN 
 CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 



2020 UFV Alumni Association AGM 
 

6 

11. Board Elections (Derrick Uittenbosch, Vice-Chair) 
 
The Governance Committee has put forward the following names for election to the office 
of Director-at-Large, for a two-year term: 

• Marc Bergen (BA ’98) 
 

It is declared that Mr. Bergen be elected by acclamation. 
 

12. New Business (Derek Froese, Chair) 
 
Motion from the floor: that the UFV Alumni Association formally recognize and commend 
this board, under the leadership of Ali Siemens, for its outstanding work during a 
challenging year and circumstances. 

NIK VENEMA / DEREK WARD-HALL 
 CARRIED 

 
• Introduction of newly appointed directors (Derrick Uittenbosch, Vice-Chair):  

• Aman Khinda (BBA ’18) 
• Keenan Beavis (BBA ’19) 
• Isaac Veeneman (BBA ’19) 

 
13. Questions from the floor 
 
14. Adjournment (Derek Froese, Chair) 
 

Motion: Be it resolved that we adjourn the 2020 UFVAA AGM AT 8:09pm. 
ASHLEY WARD-HALL / EMILY HENRY 

 CARRIED 
 
 
 
Minutes approved: 
 
Chair: _______________________________ Date: _______________ 



University of the Fraser Valley Alumni Association
Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets (Unaudited)
For the year ended March 31, 2021

2021 2020 2019
Revenue:

Convocation 2,906           33,396         34,432         
Alumni Wear/Merchandise* 55                -                   180              
Affinity Programs 19,009         11,469         10,958         
Interest Income 804              1,804           1,031           
Commemorative Wine 4,637           5,411           6,944           
Events -                   -                   -                   

27,412         52,080         53,546         

Expenditures:
Commemorative Wine 1,794           5,644           5,473           
Convocation 1,861           8,547           6,203           
Affinity Program 210              -                   -                   
Alumni Wear/Merchandise* -                   4,471           594              
Insurance 1,190           1,082           1,030           
Advertising 364              510              409              
Miscellaneous 477              144              501              
Sponsored Events -                   8,252           4,221           
Awards 2,651           7,800           6,028           
Events -                   4,143           4,215           
Board Meetings 709              5,142           4,700           
Board Meeting Travel 176              -                   -                   
Website/Online Platform 3,515           -                   -                   
Scholarships 1,000           -                   
Honoraria/Benefits 1,524           690              -                   

15,472         46,425         33,375         

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures 11,940         5,655           20,172         
Net assets, beginning of year 72,136         66,482         46,310         
Net assets, end of year 84,076         72,136         66,482         

*Actual fiscal total - no adjustment for inventory



University of the Fraser Valley Alumni Association
Statement of Financial Position  (Unaudited)
For the year ended March 31, 2021

2021 2020 2019

Assets
Cash and Investments 84,076$                   68,867$                   63,213$                   
Inventory 1,436$                     3,269$                     3,269$                     

85,512$                   72,136$                   66,482$                   

Net Assets
Unrestricted 85,512$                   72,136$                   66,482$                   

Approved on behalf of the board 

Derek Froese
Chair, UFV Alumni Association



__________________________________ 
Last updated: 2021-05-17 

 

 
UNIVERSITY OF THE FRASER VALLEY 

ALUMNI ASSOCIATION 
BY-LAWS 

 

 
 

PART 1 - Interpretation 
 

1. In these By-laws and the Constitution, unless the context otherwise requires: 

 
(a) “directors” means the directors of the Society for the time being; 

(b) “Society Act” means the Society Act of the Province of British Columbia 
from time to time in force and all amendments to it; 

(c) “registered address” of a member means his or hertheir address as 
recorded in the register of members; 

(d) “Society” shall mean and include University of the Fraser Valley Alumni 
Association or such other name as may be given in the future; 

(e) “alumni” means students who have graduated with a masters degree, 
bachelors degree, diploma, certificate or citation or who, prior to January 
1, 2004, have earned 30 or more credits, or earned a certificate in a trades 
program from Fraser Valley College, the University College of the Fraser 
Valley, or the University of the Fraser Valleythe University of the Fraser 
Valley including its predecessors. 

(f) “members” means those persons described in Part 2 Membership; 

(g) “ex-officio’ means non voting member by virtue of office or official 
position.refers to a director who is not elected or appointed, but 
holds their directorship by virtue of another office that they hold. 
UFVAA ex-officio directors are non-voting. 

(h) “office” means elected director position. 

(i) Fraser Valley College shall be referred to as FVC, University College of the 
Fraser Valley shall be referred to as UCFV, and University of the Fraser 
Valley shall be referred to as UFV throughout this document. 

(j) “Staff LiaisonExecutive Director” means the individual who is assigned as 
the primary contact person between UFV and the UFV Alumni Association, 
and supports the activities of the UFV Alumni Association on a full-time 
basis. 

 
2. Except where there is a conflict, the definitions contained in the Society Act 

apply to these By-laws on the date these By-laws become effective. 
 

3. Words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa. 



__________________________________ 
Last updated: 2021-05-17 

 

 

PART 2 - Membership 
 

4. Regular Membership 
The regular members of the Society shall be comprised of the following persons: 

 

(a) the applicants for incorporation of the Society, whether or not any such 
person shall subsequently cease to be a director of the Society, and who 
shall be entitled to vote at all meetings of the Society; 

(b) students who have graduated with a masters degree, bachelors degree, 
diploma, certificate or citation from FVC, or the UCFV, or the UFV or who, 
prior to January 1, 2004, completed 30 or more credits; 

(c) those who have been conferred an honourary Doctorate degree from 
FVC, UCFV and / or UFV; 

(d) students who have earned a certificate in a trades program from the 
University of the Fraser Valley including its predecessorsearned a 
certificate in a trades program. 

 
5. Associate Membership 

 
(a) Any person not provided for in these By-Laws may be granted Associate 

Membership by resolution of the Board of Directors. 

(b) Associate members shall be non-voting members of the Association. 

 
6. Honorary Life Membership 

 
(a) The Board of Directors may confer an Honorary Life Membership on any 

person who, in its opinion, has made an outstanding contribution to 
education. 

(b) Honorary Life Members shall be non-voting members of the Association. 

 
7. redacted 

 

8. redacted 
 

9. redacted 
 
10. Voting privileges and nomination for the Board positions are reserved exclusively 

for Regular Members in Good Standing. 
 

11. Responsibilities of Members 
 

All Members of the Society must: 



__________________________________ 
Last updated: 2021-05-17 

 
(a) abide by the constitution and by-laws of the Society; 

(b) abide by all resolutions passed by the Members at a general meeting and 
all resolutions passed by the Society’s executive. 

 
12. Cessation of Membership 

 

A person shall cease to be a member of the Society 

(a) if a Member withdraws by giving written notice to the Society, or 

(b) on his or hertheir death, or 

(c) on being expelled, or 

(d) having been a Member not in good standing for 12 consecutive months. 

 
13. Suspension or Expulsion of a Member 

 
(a) A Member may be expelled by a special resolution of the members 

passed at a general meeting of the Society. 

(b) The notice of special resolution for suspension or expulsion shall be 
accompanied by a brief statement of the reason or reasons for the 
proposed suspension or expulsion. 

(c) The person who is the subject of the proposed resolution for suspension 
or expulsion shall be given an opportunity to be heard at the general 
meeting before the special resolution is put to a vote. 

 
14. Members in Good Standing 

 
All Members are in good standing except a Member who has failed to pay his or 
hertheir subscription or debt due and owing by the Member to the Society and 
the Member is not in good standing so long as the debt remains unpaid. 

 

PART 3 - Meetings of the Members 
 
15. General meetings of the Society may be held virtually or in-person, and at such a 

time, as the directors decide. 
 
16. A general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be an 

extraordinary general meeting. 
 
17. The directors may, when they think fit, convene an extraordinary general 

meeting. 

 
(a) Notice of a general meeting must specify the place, day and hour of the 

meeting, and, in case of planned special business, the general nature of 



__________________________________ 
Last updated: 2021-05-17 

that business. 

(b) The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting to, or the non-receipt 
of a notice by, any of the members entitled to receive notice does not 
invalidate proceedings at that meeting. 

 

18. An annual general meeting must be held at least once in every calendar year and 
not more than 15 months after the holding of the last preceding annual general 
meeting. 

 

PART 4 - Proceedings at General Meetings 
 

19. Special business is 

 
(a) all business at an extraordinary general meeting except the adoption of 

rules of order, and 

(b) all business conducted at an annual general meeting, except the 
following: 

(i) the adoption of rules of order; 

(ii) the consideration of the financial statements for the fiscal 
year just ended; 

(iii) the consideration of report of the directors and auditors; 

(iv) the election of directors under Part 5; 

(v) the appointment of an auditor, if required; 

(vi) the other business that, under these by-laws, ought to be 
conducted at an annual general meeting, or business that 
is brought under consideration by the report of the 
directors issued with the notice convening the meeting. 

 
20. (a) Business, other than the election of a chair and the adjournment or 

termination of the meeting, must not be conducted at a general meeting 
at a time when a quorum is not present. 

(b) If at any time during a general meeting there ceases to be a quorum 
present, business then in progress must be suspended until there is a 
quorum present or until the meeting is adjourned or terminated. 

(c) A quorum for general and special meetings is 1/3 of Directors. 
(d) A quorum for the annual general meeting shall not be less than 10 

regular members in good standing or as otherwise determined by the 
Board of Directors of the Association. 

 
21. If within 30 minutes from the time appointed for a general meeting a quorum is 

not present, the meeting, if convened on the requisition of members, must be 
terminated, but in any other case, it must stand adjourned to the same day in 
the next week, at the same time and place, and if, at the adjourned meeting, a 
quorum is not present within 30 minutes from the time appointed for the 



__________________________________ 
Last updated: 2021-05-17 

meeting, the members present constitute a quorum. Should quorum not be 
achieved, at the request of the chair, a new meeting can be called to ensure 
quorum or an email can be used as an acceptable vehicle to ensure motions are 
passed. 
 

22. Subject to bylaw 23, the chair of the Society, the vice-chair or, in the absence of 
both, one of the other directors present must preside as chair of a general 
meeting. 

 

23. If at a general meeting 

 
(a) there is no chair, vice-chair or other director present within 15 minutes 

after the time appointed for holding the meeting, or 

(b) the chair and all the other directors present are unwilling to act as the 
chair,  

the regular members present must choose one of their number to be the 
chair. 

 
24. (a) A general meeting may be adjourned from time to time and from place to 

place, but no business shall be transacted at an adjourned meeting other 
than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the 
adjournment took place. 

(b) Where a meeting is adjourned for ten days or more, notice of the 
adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of the original meeting. 

(c) Except as provided in this bylaw, it is not necessary to give notice of an 
adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned general 
meeting. 

 
25. In case of a dispute the most recent edition of Roberts Rules of Order shall 

govern proceedings. 
 

26. The following rules apply to voting at general meetings of the Society: 

 
(a) redacted 

(b) A person who is entitled to vote in an Alumni Association Board of 
Directors Election may appoint another association member as his/her 
voting proxy by using the prescribed form available from the Alumni 
Engagement Association Office. The proxy vote form must be filled out 
and be submitted to the Alumni Engagement Association Office prior to 
the commencement of the vote. A proxy is eligible to vote proxy for one 
absent member, in addition to their own vote. 

 
PART 5 – Governance and the Board of Directors 



__________________________________ 
Last updated: 2021-05-17 

 
27. The affairs of the Society shall be governed by the Board of Directors, who may 

exercise all of the powers of the Society subject to 
 

(a) this constitution and these by-laws, and 

(b) all laws affecting the society, and 

(c) rules, not being inconsistent with these by-laws, that are made from time 
to time by the society in a general meeting. 

 
28. A rule, made by the society in a general meeting, does not invalidate a prior act 

of the directors that would have been valid if that rule had not been made. 
 
29. (a) The Board of Directors consists of the following voting and non-voting 

appointed members of the Society: 
 

- Voting Members: Chair, Vice-Chair, Associate Vice-Chairs (x2), and 
Directors-at-Large (x12). 

 
- Non-voting ex-officio Members: UFV Chancellor, Chair Emeritus 
(immediate) of the UFV Alumni Association, UFV Alumni Association 
Representative on the UFV Senate, and Alumni Representatives on the 
UFV Board of Governors and the UFV Staff Liaison to the UFV Alumni 
Association. 
-  

 
(b) The subscribers shall appoint, at the date of incorporation of the Society, 

up to five (5) members, or such greater number as may be determined 
from time to time by the Members, to serve as directors until the first 
annual general meeting of the Society. 

 
There shall be no more than 16 elected directors at any given time. Of 
the 16 directors, no more than 8 shall be odd year elected directors (four 
of those positions having been allocated to the four executive positions) 
and no more than 8 shall be even year elected directors 

 

(c) No director shall hold office for more than 6 consecutive years. 
 

30. (a) Separate elections will be held for the positions of: Director-at-Large, 
Associate Vice-Chair and Vice-Chair. 

(b) The position of Vice-Chair shall also be considered to be that of “Chair 
Elect” (though this title shall not be used for operational purposes). As 
such, the Vice-Chair shall automatically become the Chair once the 
current Chair completes his or hertheir two-year term. 

(b) If the Vice-Chair position is vacant, at the recommendation of the 
chair and/or the discretion of the Executive, the board may appoint a 



__________________________________ 
Last updated: 2021-05-17 

director or member according to Section 31(a) to fill a temporary third 
Associate Vice-Chair position until such a time as the Vice-Chair 
position is filled. This will allow for a full executive team of four(4) 
active directorsThe Executive will always have a maximum of 4 
members. 

(c)  
(d) The Chair may only serve a maximum of one, two-year term, subject to 

the exemption outlined in Section (30)(ed). 
(e) Should the position of Chair become vacant prior to the Chair completing 

his or hertheir two-year term, the Vice-Chair shall automatically become 
the Chair and shall complete the current term of office left vacant, as 
well as their own two-year term of office, successively. 

(f) If the Vice-Chair declines the position of Chair, the Board of Directors – 
under the authority granted to them in Section (31)(a) – shall appoint a 
Chair to complete the current two-year term. 

(g) If the person elected to the position of Vice-Chair has already completed 
a total of four (or more) years of service, their overall term of service may 
exceed the maximum defined in Section (29)(c). 

(h) Any person wishing to seek election (or appointment) to the position of 
Associate Vice-Chair or Vice-Chair (or Chair), must currently be 
servinghave served as a Director-at-Large, unless nominated by the 
Governance Committee or have had prior service on the Board.. 

(i) All persons who at any time, and for any length of time, have served as 
Chair of the UFV Alumni Association Board of Directors will be given the 
title “Chair Emeritus” upon completing their service (retroactive to the 
“Founding Chair”), unless they have resigned as a result of – or are 
removed by Special Resolution as per Section (32)(a) for – inappropriate 
conduct. 

(j) The immediate “Chair Emeritus” will automatically be appointed to a 
two-year term as an Ex-Officio member of the UFV Alumni Association 
Board of Directors; said position is not subject to Section (29)(c). 
Additionally, the role “Chair Emeritus” can only be filled by the most 
immediate past-Chair. If said person chooses not to avail himself or 
herself of this opportunity, then the position of “Chair Emeritus” shall be 
left vacant. A person who has resigned as a result of – or is removed by 
Special Resolution as per Section (32)(a) for – inappropriate conduct shall 
not be afforded this title or the opportunity to serve as an Ex-Officio 
Board Member. 

(k) An election may be by acclamation; otherwise it shall be by ballot. 
(l) If no successor is elected the person previously elected or appointed 

continues to hold office until a successor is found. 
(m) Nominations will not be accepted from the floor at general meetings, but 

will be made by the Governance Committee or Executive Committee, 
unless made by a current or prior Chair or Chair Emeritus. 

 
31. (a) The board of directors may appoint a regular member as a director to fill 



__________________________________ 
Last updated: 2021-05-17 

a vacancy in the directors or Executive Committee. 

(b) Directors must disclose to all other UFV Alumni Association directors all 
material interests in matters that may conflict with their duties to the 
society. 

(c) The Board of Directors must ensure that all of its directors and senior 
managers meet qualifications. An individual who is an undischarged 
bankrupt is not qualified, nor are individuals found incapable by a court, 
nor are individuals under the age of 18 years old, nor are individuals 
convicted of fraud-related offences, nor are individuals convicted of 
certain criminal offences in the past five years. 

(d) All directors, except those elected or appointed at a meeting they attend, 
must provide written consent to act as a director of the UFV Alumni 
Association. 

(e) Any person who is newly appointed to the Board of Directors in-between 
Annual General Meetings shall be considered to be serving their first year 
of office and will complete their first year of office as of the next Annual 
General Meeting. 

(f) A director so appointed holds office only until the next annual general 
meeting but is eligible for re-election at the meeting. 

(g) Notwithstanding Section (31)(c), a director appointed to an executive 
position shall hold said executive position until such time the current 
two-year term of that position is over; meaning, until the next ‘odd year’ 
Annual General Meeting. 

(h) The UFV Alumni Association must ensure that a majority of its directors 
are not employed by or under contract with the society or UFV. 

(i) The Chair and Vice-Chair must not be employees of UFV. 

(i)(j) The Board may appoint an Executive Director by majority vote. It is 
common practice, but not a requirement, that this person will be UFV’s 
Director of Alumni Relations. 

 

32. (a) The regular members may by special resolution remove a director before 

the expiration of his or hertheir term of office, and may elect a successor 

to complete the term of office. 

(b) Non-attendance for two scheduled board meetings between Annual 
General Meetings without sufficient cause – ‘sufficient cause’ as 
determined by the Chair of the board of directors – shall be regarded as 
an immediate resignation. 

The board member will be sent, to their home address, a letter from the 
chair stating acceptance of the board member resignation. The vacated 
position will then be filled by a newly appointed member who will serve 
out the term of the departing member. The newly appointed member 
may stand for re-appointment upon completion of the appointed term. 
Exceptional circumstances will be taken into consideration. The onus is 



__________________________________ 
Last updated: 2021-05-17 

on the absent member to communicate the circumstances of their 
absences to the board chair. 

(c) The Executive Director may have their appointment revoked by the 
Board. The Executive Committee may temporarily suspend the 
Executive Director from their office for up to 30 days until such time as 
the Board can be convened.  

 
33. The activities of the Society shall be carried on without purpose of gain for its 

members and any income, benefits or other accretions to the Society shall be 
used in promoting the purposes as set forth in paragraph 2 of the Constitution of 
the Society. No Director or officer shall be remunerated for being or acting as a 
Director or officer. This clause was previously unalterable. 

 
34. Pursuant to paragraph 3 of the Constitution of the Society, no director or officer 

shall be remunerated for being or acting as a director or officer but a director or 
officer may be reimbursed for all expenses necessary and reasonably incurred by 
him or herthem engaged in the affairs of the Society if those expenses have been 
approved by the board prior to incurring them. 

 

PART 6 – Duties of Officers and Ex-Officio Board Members 
 

35. The Chair shall: 
(a) Preside as Chair at all meetings of the Society and of the Directors; 
(b) Preside as Chair of the Executive Committee; 
(c) Preside as Chair of the UFV Joint Chancellor Selection Committee; 
(d) Serve as the primary liaison to the UFV President and the UFV Board of 

Governors; 
(e) Serve as the primary Board contact for the UFV Alumni Engagement Staff 

LiaisonExecutive Director; 
(f) Serve as the primary ambassador of the association at all formal (internal & 

external) events related to the Society and/or the Institution it serves; 
(g) Serve – as requested – on additional institutional committees. 

 

36. The Vice-Chair shall: 
(a) Carry out the duties of the Chair during his or hertheir absence, or as 

delegated. These responsibilities may include – though are not limited to 
– the items listed in Section 34 (a), (b), (d), (e), (f), (g) and (h). 

(b) Preside as Chair of the UFV Joint Chancellor Selection Committee (43(c)) 
in the event the Chair cannot – under any circumstance – fulfill this duty. 

(c) Serve as the senior counselor to the Chair. 
(d) Provide oversight of the Associate Vice-Chairs (x2). 

 

37. The Associate Vice-Chairs (x2) shall: 
(a) Oversee the various committees of the board as determined by the Executive 

Committee. 
(b) Will report directly to the Vice-Chair on the activities of the various 



__________________________________ 
Last updated: 2021-05-17 

committees of the board. 
(c) The Executive Committee is excluded from points (a) and (b) noted above. 

 

38. The Chancellor: 
a) This is strictly an honorary position given that the Chancellor is the 

Ceremonial Head of the University. 
b) At the request of the Chair, the Chancellor may participate in certain 

activities/events relating to the UFV Alumni Association. 
 

39. The Chair Emeritus shall: 
a) Make themselves available to the Board Chair / Executive Committee for the 

purpose of providing counsel. 
b) Assist with any matters deemed appropriate by the Board Chair. 
c) Shall lLiaisone with all previous Chair Emeriti for the purposes of maintaining 

relations with this unique stakeholder group within the Society. 
 

40. The Staff LiaisonExecutive Director shall: 
a) Be an ex-officio member of the Executive CommitteeAttend regular meetings 

of the Board, Members, and Executive.. Attend in-camera meetings of the 
same if invited by the Chair. 

b) Serve as the primary liaison between the Board and UFV staff  or/  
departments. 

c) Execute the Strategic Plan set down by the Board under the guidance of the 
Constitution, Mission, Vision, and Values. 

d) Be accountable to the Board through expectations, metrics, or KPIs as 
determined by the Board. 

e) Exercise any authority delegated to them by the Board through resolutions, 
terms of reference, or other motions made by the Board. 

b)f) Carry out their duties as delegated from the Board through resolutions, 
policies, terms of reference, or other instructions produced by the Board. 

 

41. The Senate Representative shall: 
a) Shall represent the UFV Alumni Association on the UFV Senate. 
b) Shall regularly update the UFV Alumni Association Board of Directors on the 

activities of the Senate. 
c) Specific duties shall be outlined in an agreement between UFV and the UFV 

Alumni Association. 
 

PART 7 - Proceedings of Directors 

 
42. (a) The directors may meet virtually or at the places they think fit to conduct 

business, adjourn and otherwise regulate their meeting and proceedings, 
as they see fit. 

(b) The directors may from time to time set the quorum necessary to 
conduct business, and unless so set the quorum is a majority of the 



__________________________________ 
Last updated: 2021-05-17 

directors then in office, but shall not, in any case, be less than ½ of all 
active voting directors. 

(c) Directors must disclose conflicts of interest at every meeting as soon as 
possible. Board members are expected to disclose the conflict of interest 
themselves and recuse themselves from votes. The Board Chair may 
determine there is a conflict of interest, and require the member to 
abstain from votes. 

(d) The Chair is the chair of all meetings of the directors, but if at a meeting 
the chair is not present within 30 minutes after the time appointed for 
holding the meeting, the vice chair must act as the chair, but if neither is 
present the directors present may choose one of the directors to be the 
chair of that meeting. 

(e) The Chair must at any time, on the request of a director, convene a 
meeting of the directors. 

 
43. The board may delegate any, but not all, of its powers to committee which may 

be in whole or in part composed of directors as it thinks fit. 
 
44. A committee, in the exercise of the powers delegated to it, shall conform to any 

rules that may from time to time be imposed by the Board, and shall report 
every act or thing done in exercise of those powers at the next meeting of the 
Board held after it has been done, or at such other time or times as the Board of 
directors may determine. 
 

45. The members of a committee may meet and adjourn as they think proper and 
meetings of the committees shall be governed by the rules set out in these 
by-laws governing the proceedings of the Board. 

 
46. The Board may create such standing and special committees as may from time to 

time be required.  Any such committee shall limit its activities to the purposes 
for which it is appointed, and shall have no powers except those specifically 
conferred by a Board resolution. Unless specifically designated as a standing 
committee, any special committee so created must be created for a specified 
time period only. Upon completion of the task for which it was appointed, a 
special committee shall automatically be dissolved. 

 
47. (a) The Board must constitute the following Standing Committees: Executive 

Committee and Governance Committee. 

(b) The Executive Committee shall consist of the executive members of the 
board of directors as listed herein: Chair, Vice-Chair, and the Associate 
Vice-Chairs (x2). The committee shall meet at the call of the Chair and 
three of the four members will be required for quorum. 

(c) The Executive Committee may establish or modify additional committees 
beyond the constituted standing committees as required. Potential 
committees will be brought before the Board of Directors for discussion. 

Formatted: Font: Not Italic



__________________________________ 
Last updated: 2021-05-17 

(d) The Executive Committee shall have the authority to appoint and remove 
all Committee Chairs. 

(e) A Committee Chair must be a member of the UFV Alumni Association 
Board of Directors. 

(f) Each Committee Chair will report to a designated Associate Vice-Chair. 
Said Associate Vice-Chair will be determined by the Executive Committee 
and will also serve as an Ex-Officio member of that committee. 

(g) The Chair and Vice-Chair of the UFV Alumni Association Board of 
Directors will serve as an Ex-Officio members on all committees, with the 
exception of the Executive Committee as per Section (46)(b). 

(h) The Governance Committee shall establish policy regarding committee 
composition and conduct. 

 
48. (a) Questions arising at any meeting of the directors and committee of 

directors must be decided by a majority of votes. 

(b) repealed. 

 
49. Voting: 

 
(a) A director in good standing present at a meeting of directors is entitled to 

one vote. 

(b) Voting is by show of hands, unless the directors or Chair otherwise 
decide. 

(c) Voting by proxy is not permitted. 

 
50. A resolution in writing, signed by all the directors and placed with the minutes is 

as valid and effective as if regularly passed at a meeting of directors. 
 
51. A resolution by email, responded to by at least 60% of directors, having the 

majority that would be required of a motion at a meeting, and complying with 
the Online Voting policy of the Association is as valid and effective as if regularly 
passed at a meeting of directors. 

 
52. In the absence of a staff person, the directors must appoint a director to act as 

the recording secretary for that meeting. 
 

PART 8 – Responsibilities of Committees 
 

53. The Executive Committee (Standing Committee): 
- Shall be responsible for all operational & financial matters. 

 

54. Governance Committee (Standing Committee): 
- Shall be responsible for succession planning, governance practices, and policy. 

 

55. Special Committees (Ad Hoc and Task Forces): 



__________________________________ 
Last updated: 2021-05-17 

- All Special Committees shall be given specific objectives by the Executive 
Committee on a case-by-case basis. 

 

 

PART 9 - Seal 
 
56. The directors may provide a common seal for the society and may destroy a seal 

and substitute a new seal in its place. 
 
57. The common seal must be affixed only when authorized by a resolution of the 

directors and then only in the presence of the persons prescribed in the 
resolution, or if no persons are prescribed, in the presence of the chair and 
vice-chair or chair and one of the two associate vice-chair’s. 

 

PART 10 - Borrowing 
 
58. In order to carry out the purposes of the society the directors may, on behalf of 

and in the name of the society, raise or secure the payment or repayment of 
money in such manner as they decide and in particular but without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, by the issue of debentures. 

 

59. Any financial assistance given outside of the ordinary course of activities of the 
UFV Alumni Association must be detailed on financial statements. 

 
60. No debenture shall be issued without the sanction of a special resolution passed 

by 75% of the members of the Society present at an annual general meeting. 
 
61. The members may, by special resolution passed by 75% of the regular members 

of the Society, present at an annual general meeting, restrict the borrowing 
powers of the directors, but a restriction imposed expires at the next annual 
general meeting. 

 

PART 11 – Remuneration 
 
62. The UFV Alumni Association must report on remuneration paid to its directors 

and its highest paid ($75,000 plus) employees/contractors on its financial 
statements. 

 

PART 12 - Auditor 
 

63. This part applies only if the society is required or has resolved to have an auditor. 
 
64. The first auditor must be appointed by the directors who must also fill all 

vacancies occurring in the office of auditor. 
 
65. At each annual general meeting the society must appoint an auditor to hold 



__________________________________ 
Last updated: 2021-05-17 

office until the auditor is re-elected or a successor is elected at the next annual 
general meeting. 

 

66. An auditor may be removed by ordinary resolution. 
 
67. An auditor must be promptly informed in writing of the auditor’s appointment or 

removal. 
 

68. A director or employee of the society must not be its auditor. 
 

69. The auditor may attend general meetings. 
 

PART 13 - Notices to Members 
 
70. A notice may be given to a member, either personally or by mail to the member 

at the member’s registered address, or email or through advertisement in local 
newspapers in Abbotsford, Chilliwack and Mission or in such other manner as 
may have been determined by resolution of the members. 

 

71. A notice sent by mail is deemed to have been given on the second day following 
that on which the notice is posted, and in proving that notice has been given it is 
sufficient to prove that the notice was properly addressed and put in a Canadian 
post office receptacle. 

 

72. Notices of a general meeting shall be given to: 

 
(a) every member shown on the register of members on the day notice is 

given, and 

(b) the auditor, if Part 10 applies. 

(c) No other person is entitled to receive a notice of a general meeting. 

 
PART 14 - By-laws 

 
73. On being admitted to membership, each member is entitled to request and 

the Society shall give him or herthem, without charge, a copy of the 
constitution and by-laws of the society if the member requests a copysociety. 

 
74. These by-laws must not be altered or added to, except by special resolution held 

at a General Meeting and 75 per cent of the regular members present must vote 
in favour of the resolution. 

 
74.75. The records kept by the Society according to regulation and the BC Societies Act 

are not open for inspection at the discretionwithout permission of the Board of 
Directors and/or the Executive Committee.  

 



__________________________________ 
Last updated: 2021-05-17 

 
 

PART 15 – Dissolution of Society 
 
75.76. If, upon dissolution of the Society there remains, after the satisfaction of all 

debts and liabilities, including all costs, charges and expenses properly incurred 
in the dissolution, any funds or other assets of any nature, the same shall be 
transferred and paid to the University of the Fraser Valley, or such other name as 
the University of the Fraser Valley may be given in the future. 


	2021-05-26 AGM Agenda
	2021 AGM Meeting Package
	2021-05-26 AGM Agenda
	2020 UFV Alumni Association AGM Minutes
	2020-21 UFVAA Financial Statements
	Budget Tracker as of March 31, 2021
	2020-21 UFVAA Financial Statements
	Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets as of March 31, 2021


	UFVAA Proposed Bylaws 2021 - redline




